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BEFORE THE EPA--REGION 108
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY ‘

In the Matter of: DOCKET NO. CWA-10-2010-0138§

Highland Light Seafoods, LLC,
Scattle, WA

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND
FINAL ORDER

i

Respondent.

I. STATUTORY AUTIHORITY

1.1, This Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO”) is issued under the authority
vested in the Administrator of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) by Section
309g)2)B) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA™), 33 ULS.C. § 1319(g)2)(B).

1.2 The Administrator has delegated the authority 1o issue the Final Ordér contained
in Part V of this CAFO to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region 10, who has redelegated
this authority to the Regional Judicial Officer in EPA Region 10.

.3, Pursuant to Section 309(g)( 1) and (g)(2)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(1)
and (g¥2)(B), and in accordance with the “Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,” 40 C.I.R. Part 22, EPA issues, and Highland
Light Seatoods, LLLC ("Respondent”) agrees 1o issuance of, the Final Order contained in Part V
of this CAFQ.

[I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

2.1, In accordance with 40 C F.R. §§ 22.13(h) and 22.45(b}, issuance of this CAIFO
commences this proceeding, which will conclude when the Final Order contained in Part V of

this CAFO becomes effective.
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. 2:’2? " The Director of the Office of Compliance and Enforcement, EPA Region 10
E ('»‘Cmnpluinnnl“") has been delegated the authority pursuant to Section 309(g) of the CWA,
I US.CL§ 1319(g). 1o sign consent agreements between EPA and the party against whon a
Class H penalty is proposed ta be assessed.

2.3, Part T of this CAFO contains a concise statement of the factual and legal basis
for the alleged violations of the CW A, together wilh the specific provisions of the CWA and

implementing regulations that Respondent is afleged o have violated.

HI. ALLEGATIONS

3.1 Scction 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, provides that EPA may issue NPDIES
permits for the discharge of any pollutant into waters ol the United States upon such specific
terms and conditions as EPA may prescribe.

3.2, Scction 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 131 I(a), prohibits the discharge ol any
pollutant by any person except as authorized by an NPDES permit or other specified statutory
sections,

330 Atadl times relevant to this action, Respondent owned and operated the seafood
processing vessel, the M/V Westward Wind (“Facility™).

34, Respondent, Highland Light Scafoods, LLC is a corporation, and thus, a person
within the meaning of Scction 502(5) of the Act, 33 US.C. §1362(5).

3.5, Respondent is authorized 10 discharge seafond processing waste into specified
waters of the United States under general NPDES Permit No. AK-G52-0000 ¢*Permit™). The
MV Westward Wind operates under the unique identifier, AK-GS2-0408.

3.6.  Respondent discharged seafood processing waste from the butchering of seatood

from the M/V Westward Wind., Scalood processing waste Irom the butchering of seafood is a
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“poltutant™ which is “discharged™ within the meaning of Section 502(6) and (12) of the Act, 33
US.C.§136206)and (12).

3.7.  Respondent discharged seafood processing waste from the butchering of sealood
from the M/V Westward Wind into the receiving waters within three nautical miles of the
Pribilof Islands, as well as Nazan Bay, Cannery Bay, Makushin Bay, and Wide Bay, and more
than one mile offshore of Alaska in the Bering Sea. The receiving waters within three nautical
miles of the Pribilof Islands, as well as Nazan Bay, Cannery Bay, Makushin Bay, and Wide Bay,
and more than one mile offshore the coast of Alaska in the Bering Sea constitute “navigable
waters” and “waters of the United States™ within the meaning of Section 502(7) of the Act,
33US.C.§1326(7).

Violation 1

3.8, Secction [{LE.2 of the Permit states that a permittee shall not discharge pollutants
to the receiving waters within three (3) nautical miles of the Pribilof Islands.

3.9, Onat least thirty-one (31) different occasions from Junuary through March 2006,
Respondent discharged seafood processing waste from the M/V Westward Wind into the
receiving waters within three nautical miles of the Pribilof Islands.

3.10.  Respondent did not have coverage under its NPDES Permit for these discharges,
in violation of the Permit and the Act.

Violation 2

311 Section HLB. 1 of the Permit states that a permittee shall not discharge pollutants
to an at-risk waterbody with a water depth of less than 60 feet mean lower low water (*"MLLW?)
that has or is likely to have poor flushing, Section V.B.1.f of the Permit states that a permitiee

shill discharge seafood processing wastes through an outfall Tine or through the hull port at a
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depth of three (3) (eet or more below the sea surface and to the receiving water at least minus 60
foot depth MLLW,

312 On October 31, November 1, and December 8, 10, and 11, 2005, Respondent
discharged pollutants from the M/V Westward Wind to Nazan Bay, which has a water depth of
fess than 60 feet MLLW and the potential for poor flushing.

313, Respondent discharged pollutants from the M/V Westward Wind to Nazan Bay,
in violation of the Permit and Act.

Violation 3

3040 Sections VA Lu, V.B. La and V.C.La of the Permit all state that a permitice
shall not discharge a volume or weight of seafood processing waste residues on a daily or annual
hasis which exceeds the amount reported in the permitiee’s Notice of Intent (“NOI”) to he
covered under the Permit.

315, On at least sixteen (16) different oecasions in October 2004, January, February
and Novermber 2005, and March 2006, Respondent discharged seafood processing waste,
including Opilio Tunner crab, Bairdi Tanner crab, Red King crab, and Brown King crab, that
excecded the volume or weight reported in Respondent’s NOIL

3.16.  Respondent discharged a volume or weight of seatood processing waste residues
that exceeded the amount reported in the NOL, in violation of the Permit and the Act.

Violation 4
3147, Sections [V.C.6. and 7(d) of the Permit require that a permitiee include projected

production data in the NOL including the nanie and guantity in pounds of the product.
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118, Onat least sixteen (16) different occasions from October 2005 through January
2000, Respondent discharged Bairdi Tanner crab and Brown King crab even though Respondent
failed 1o identify them, by name or quantity, in its NOL.

319, Respondent failed 1o include projected production data in the NOI, in violation of
the Permit and the Act.

Violation §

3.20. Section 308(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1318(a), requires the owner or operitor
of any point source to “provide such other information as [the Administrator] may reasonably
require” in order to carry out the objectives of the CWA,

3210 LEPA issued an Information Request pursuant to Section 308(a) of the CWA 1o
Respondent on February 15, 2008. Respondent did not respond timely to the Information
Request issued pursuant to Section 308(a) of the CWA,

3.22. Respondent failed to respond to a CWA Section 308 Information Request, in
violation of the Act.

Violation 6

3.23. Section IV.AS of the Permil requires a permittee (o submit to EPA and ADEC an
updated and amended NOf when there is any material change in the information submitted
within its original NOL Section VL.B.d of the Permit requires a permittee to provide in its annual
report a statement of any changes to its NOI, especially changes in process, locations and
production levels.

324, In January, 2003, 2006, and 2007, Respondent submitted annual reports with

location information showing that it operated as a shore-based or near-shore facility. At these
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times, Respondent failed to amend its NOI to reflect these changes as it characterized the
Westward Wind as operating solely as an off-shore processor.

3.25. Respondent Failed to submit to EPA an updated and amended NOI when there
was @ material change in the information submitted within its original NOI or to state this
material change in its annual reports to EPA, in violation of the Permit and the Act.

Violation 7

3.26.  Scction IV.C.3 of the Permit requires a permittee to submit information in the
NOU on the receiving water including: the name of the waterbodies receiving the discharges;
arcas within three nautical miles that are excluded from coverage under the Permit; a bathymetric
map of the receiving water within one nautical mile of the discharge: and current and tidal
information.

3.27. On at least fifty-two (52) different occasions from (.)cttgber 2004 through
November 20006, Respondent failed 1o submit an NOI that contained any of this information.

3.28.  Respondent failed to submit a NOI o EPA with adequate or accurate information
regarding the receiving waters, in violation of the Permit and the Act.

Violation 8

3.29. Section VLB.2.¢.(6) of the Permit requires a permittee to submit information in its
annual report on the location of the discharge, including both the name of the receiving water
and the atitude and longitude with a precision of at least 15 seconds of a degree.

330, InJanuary 2008, 2006 and 2007 and November of 2007, Respondent submitied an
annual report that did not comain the lutitude and longitude of its discharge within at feast 15

scconds of a degree.
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331, Respondent failed 1o submit to EPA & complete annual report, in violation of the
Permit and the Act.

Violation 9

332, Sections VLA LD, and e. of the Permit require a permitee to conduct daily
monitoring of ground seafood waste to ensure size is ¥z inch or less and to maintain {ogs of the
daily inspections,

333 Onat least one hundred (100) different occasions from October 2004 through
January of 2007, Respondent did not conduct daily monitoring of ground sealood waste to
ensure size is Y2 inch or less or maintain logs of the daily inspection.

334, Respondent failed to conduct daily monitoring or maintain logs of the daily grind
size inspections, in violation of the Permit and the Act.

Violation 10

3350 Section V.A Ld. of the Permit requires a pernutee to conduct a daily visual
inspection of the waste conveyance sys‘tem and to maintain logs of the daily inspection on-board
the vessel.

336, On at least one hundred (100) different occasions from October 2004 thrmqgh
January 2007, Respondent did not conduct daily monitoring of the waste conveyance systems or
maintain logs of the daily mspections.

337, Respondent failed to conduct daily monitoring or maintain logs of the conveyance

systems inspections, in violation of the Permit and the Act,
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Violation 11

338, Sections V3.5, V.C.5, and VLD of the Permit require a permitee to conduct
daity seq surface and shoreline monitoring when operating as a shore-based or near-shore
processor and to maintain logs of the daily inspections.

3390 On at least twenty-eight (28) different occasions Trom October 2004 through
December 20035, Respondent operated as a shore-based or nearshore processor but did not
conduct daily monitoring of the sea surface and shoreline or maintain logs of the daily
inspections.

340, Respondent failed to conduct daily monitoring of the sea surlace and shoreline or
maintain logs of the daily inspections, in violation of the Permit and the Act.

341, Respondent’s discharge of sealood wastes into waters of the United States from
October through February of 2004, 2005, 2006, and 2007 constitutes at least three hundred fifty
(350y days of violation of Scction 301(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 131 1{a). Conscquently, under
Section 309(g)(2)(B) of the Act, Respondent is liable for the administrative assessment ol civil
penalties in an amount not to exceed $11,000 per day for each day during which a violation

continues, up to a maximuam ol $177,500.

IV. CONSENT AGREEMENT

4.1, Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations contained in Part 11 of this
CAFO.

4.2, Respondent neither adimits nor denies the specific factual allegations contained in
Part 11 of this CALO.

4.3, Asrequired by Section 309(g)(3) of the CWA_ 33 US.C. § 1319(g)(3), EPA has

taken into account the nature, circamstances, extent, and gravity of the alleged violations as well
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as Respondent’s economic benefit of noncompliance, ability to pay, and other relevant factors.
After considering all of these fuctors, EPA has determined and Respondent agrees that an
appropriate penalty to settle this action is ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLILARS ($135,000.00).

4.4, Respondent agrees to pay the total civil penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3 within
thirty (30) days of the effective date of the Final Order,

4.5, Payment under this CAFO must be made by cashier’s check or certified check
payable to the order of “Treasurer, United States of America™ and delivered via United States

mail 1o the lollowing address:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.0O. Box 979077

St. Lows, MO 63197-9000

Respondent must note on the check the title and docket number of this action.
4.6, Respondent must deliver via United States mail a photocopy of the check
described in Paragraph 4.5 to the Regional Hearing Clerk and EPA Region 10 at the following

addresses:

Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Mail Stop ORC-158

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900

Scattle, WA 98101

Chris Gebhardt

LS. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 10, Mail Stop OCE-133

1200 Sixth Avenue, Suite 900)

Seattle, WA 98101

4.7.  If Respondent fails to pay the penalty assessed by this CAFO in full by the due

date set forth in Paragraph 4.4, the entire unpaid balance of penalty and accrued interest shall
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become immediately due and owing. Such failure may also subject Respondent to a civil action
o collect the assessed penalty under the CWA together with interest, fees, costs, and additional
penalties desceribed below. In any collection action, the validity, amount, and appropriatencss of’
the penalty shall not be subject to review.
4.7.1. Interest. Pursuant to Section 309(g)9) of the CWA, 33 ULS.C.
F3190e (D). any unpaid portion of the assessed penalty shall bear interest at a rate
established by the Sccretary of Treasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717¢ay(1) from the
cffective date of the Final Order set forth in Part V, provided however, that no interest
shall be payable on any portion of the assessed penalty that is paid within thirty (30) days
of the effective date of the Final Order.

4.7.2. Attorneys ees, Collection Costs, Nonpaymient Penalty. Pursuant to

Section 309(g)(9) of the CWA_ 33 ULS.CL§ 1319(2)9), if Respondent fails to pay on a
timely basis the penalty set forth in Paragraph 4.3, Respondent shall pay (in addition to
any assessed penalty and interest) attorneys {ees and costs for collection proccedings and

a quarterly nonpayment penalty for each quarter during which such failure to pay persists.

Such nonpayment penalty shall be in an amount equal 1o twenty percent (20%) of the

aggregate amount of Respondent’s penalties and nonpayment penalties which are unpaid

as of the beginning of such quarter.

48.  The penalty described i Paragraph 4.3, including any additional costs incurred
under Paragraph 4.7, above, represents an administrative civil penalty assessed by EPA and shall
not be deductible for purposes of Tederal taxes.

49, The undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he or she is

authorized 1o enter info the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to bind Respondent 1o this

document.
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4.10.  Lxcept as described in Subparagraph 4.7.2, above, each party shall bear its own
fees and costs in bringing or defending this action.

4. 11, Respondent expressly waives any right to contest the allegations and waives any
right to appeal the Final Order set forth in Part V.

442, The provisions ol this CAIO shall bind Respondent and its agents, servants,
employces, successors, iand assigns,

4.13. The above provisions are STIPULATLED AND AGRLEED upon hy Respondent

and EPA Region 10,

DATED: FOR RESPONDENT:

2} / 1) } ) \“”\\\i»& \\&Q&Lfb—/

1 [

Signature '
Print Name: L AD& \\ﬁ\\i\f\c{\

DATLED: MPLAINANT:

)y

EDWARD J. KOWALSKI, l)irccmr[
Office of Compliunce and Enforcement

(o!?-’b[t@

Docket Number CWA 10-2010-01 3% UN, Environmental Protection Ageney
Consent Agreement and Final Ovder 1200 Sixth Avenue, Suife 900
In the Matter of: Higlund Light Seafoods, LLC Seatthe, Washington 95101

Page 11 (206) S53-1037



V. FINAL ORDER

5.1 The terms of the foregoing Parts 111V are ratified and incorporated by reference
into this Final Order. Respondent is ordered to comply with the terms of settlement.

5.2 This CAFQ constitutes a setttement by EPA of all claims for civil penalties
pursuant to the CWA for the violations alleged in Part L In accordance with 40 C.F.R.

§ 22.3 [{ay, nothing in this CAFO shall atfect the right of EPA or the United States 1o pursoe
appropriate injunctive or other equitable reliel or eriminal sanctions for any violations of law.
This CAFO does not waive, extinguish or otherwise alfect Respondent’s ohligations to comply
with all applicable provistons of the CWA and regulations promalgated or permits issued
thereunder,

5.3, In accordimee with Section 309(g)( 1) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(1), and
40 C.ER. § 22.38(b), the Alaska Departiment of Environmental Quality has been given the
opportunity to consult with EPA regarding the assessment of the administrative civil penalty
against Respondent.

54, Pursuant to Section 309 gid)A) of the CWA, 33 ULS.C. § 1319(gXAXA), and 40
C.E.R.§ 22.45(b), EPA has issued public notice of and provided reasonable opportunity to
conmicnt on its intent to assess an administrative penalty against Respondent. More than 40
days have elapsed since issuance of this public notice and EPA has received no petition to set

aside the Consent Agreement contained herein.
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5.5.  This Final Order shall become effective upon filing.

7%
SO ORDERED this 2% _day of e , 2010.

N e

THOMAS M. JAHN%_J
Regional Judicial Offic

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 10
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that the original of the attached CONSENT AGREEMENT
AND FINAL ORDER in In the Matter of: Highland Light Seafoods, LLC, DOCKET NO.:
CWA-10-2010-0138 was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk on June 28, 2010.

On June 28, 2010 the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the document
was delivered to:

Cara Steiner-Riley, Esquire

US Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Sixth Avenue, ORC-158

Suite 900

Seattle, WA 98101

Further, the undersigned certifies that a true and correct copy of the aforementioned
document was placed in the United States mail certified/return receipt on June 28, 2010, to:

Highland Light Seafoods, LLC
2440 West Commodore Way
Seattle, WA 98199

[

DATED this 28" day of June 2010.

Can

Carol Kennedy
Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA Region 10






